Commission Minutes—June 3, 2024 5863

REGULAR MEETING OF CASS COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
JUNE 3, 2024

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER
Chairman Chad M. Peterson called the meeting to order at 3:30 PM with all members present as
follows: Tony Grindberg, Duane Breitling, Jim Kapitan, Mary Scherling, and Chad M. Peterson.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Taylor Kaushagen led the Pledge of Allegiance.

MINUTES APPROVED
MOTION, passed
Mrs. Scherling moved and Mr. Breitling seconded that the minutes of the
previous meeting be approved as written. Motion carried.

AGENDA, Order approved
MOTION, passed
Mr. Grindberg moved and Mr. Kapitan seconded to amend the order of the
agenda with the addition of item g. Authorize raffle permit for Peace Academy to
the consent agenda. Motion carried.

CONSENT AGENDA APPROVED
MOTION, passed
Mrs. Scherling moved and Mr. Breitling seconded to approve the consent
agenda as follows: On roll call vote, the motion carried unanimously.

a. Authorize purchase of Walk N Roll Packer from Lycox Enterprises, Inc. in the amount of $36,640
for the Highway Department.

b. Accept the findings and recommendations of the Cass County Planning Commission and staff
and approve the final plat for Erdmann Subdivision on the condition that access to the existing
property is modified to comply with the Cass County Highway Access Ordinance, as the proposal
meets the goals and objectives of the Cass County Comprehensive Plan, the Cass County
Highway Access Plan, the Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance, the Cass County Subdivision
Ordinance, and all other applicable regulations.

c. Grant a site authorization permit to conduct games of chance under license issued by the North
Dakota Attorney General's Office on January 18, 2025, for Cass County Wildlife Club at
Bonanzaville USA in West Fargo; grant site authorization permit to conduct games of chance
under license issued by the North Dakota Attorney General’'s Office from June 1, 2024, to July
30, 2025, for the West Fargo Hockey Association at the Shooting Park in Horace, North Dakota;
grant site authorization permits to conduct games of chance under license issued by the North
Dakota Attorney General’s Office for the period of July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025, for
Veterans, Incorporated at Bronco Bar in Chaffee, North Dakota.

d. Approve a special event permit for Jack Nick LLC d/b/a Knickerbocker Liquor Locker to serve
alcoholic beverages during the hours of 5:00 PM on June 29, 2024, to 2:00 AM on June 30,
2024, for a wedding reception/dance at 409 1st Avenue in Hickson, North Dakota; approve
special event permit for Jack Nick LLC d/b/a Knickerbocker Liquor Locker to serve alcoholic
beverages during the hours of 2:00 PM on July 20, 2024, to 2:00 AM on July 21, 2024, for a
reunion at 409 1st Avenue in Hickson, North Dakota; approve a special event permit for
Downtown Tavern d/b/a The Boiler Room to serve alcoholic beverages on June 10, 2024, during
the hours of 3:30 PM to 5:00 PM for Emerging Prairie Ag Day at Grand Farm, 3729 153rd Ave
SE in Wheatland, North Dakota; approve a special event permit for Downtown Tavern d/b/a The
Boiler Room to serve alcoholic beverages on June 12, 2024, during the hours of 3:00 PM to 6:00
PM for Emerging Prairie Ag Day at Grand Farm, 3729 153rd Ave SE in Wheatland, North
Dakota.



Commission Minutes—June 3, 2024 5864

e. Authorize Chair and Finance Director to sign the Quit Claim Deed and Satisfaction of Contract
Deed for a tax-forfeited property located in the City of Hunter redeemed by the former owner;
and authorize the Chair and Finance Director to sign the Quit Claim Deed and Satisfaction of
Contract Deed for a tax-forfeited property located in the City of Fargo redeemed by the former
owner.

f. Grant permission for the Cass County Sheriff's Office to close Cass Highway 28 at various times
between June 28, 2024, and July 15, 2024, for the purpose of public safety during the Red River
Valley Fair in West Fargo.

g. Approve raffle permit for Peace Academy to be held on June 12, 2024, at The Pines in
Davenport, North Dakota.

PUBLIC COMMENT
Mr. Peterson asked for public comment and hearing none, moved on to the regular agenda items.

COUNTY PLANNING, Final plat approval for Mcintyre Farms Subdivision approved
The Cass County Planning Commission reviewed and recommended approval of the application of
the proposed subdivision located in Casselton Township, Section 32 at a public hearing on Mary 23,
2024. The intended purpose of the subdivision is to plat a lot for development of a local natural gas
distribution facility. County Planner, Cole Hansen was present and said the application was
submitted with a variance. He said the subdivision will give utility service to the nearby ethanol plant
and soybean crushing plant.
MOTION, passed
Mr. Grindberg moved and Mr. Breitling seconded to accept the findings and
recommendations of the Cass County Planning Commission and staff and
approve the final plat for Mcintyre Farms Subdivision on the condition that
access to the existing property is modified to comply with the Cass County
Highway Access Ordinance, as the proposal meets the goals and objectives of
the Cass County Comprehensive Plan, the Cass County Highway Access Plan,
the Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance, the Cass County Subdivision
Ordinance, and all other applicable regulations. On roll call vote, the motion
carried unanimously.

TAX EQUALIZATION BOARD, Convened for 2024

Chairman Chad Peterson convened the Cass County Board of Equalization for 2024.
County Director of Equalization, Paul Fracassi was present and discussed the 2024 annual
report. He said the taxable value for Cass County for 2024 is $1,343,888,638, up 5.9% from
2023. He said the median value of a home in Cass County is $328,150, up from $320,057 in
2022. Mr. Fracassi said all information submitted by each appellant will be reviewed by the
County Assessment Office and available upon request.

Equalization of Cities
The following appellants reserved their right to appeal from the City of Fargo.

Sterling Properties

Appeals were submitted prior to the hearing by Sam Jellebe on behalf of Sterling Properties
for 21 apartment complexes within the City of Fargo and 4 apartment complexes within the
City of West Fargo. Mr. Jellebe was present and discussed increases to insurance costs,
real estate taxes, utility increases, and other expenses leading to a decreases bottom line
for apartment buildings in 2023. He said due to these high expense increases and
decreased cash flow, the value of the buildings presented have gone down. Mr. Jellebe said
he presented the properties in groups to show support for the request and provided
comparable sales from 2023. Mr. Peterson said he appreciated the large amount of




Commission Minutes—June 3, 2024 5865

information shared by Sterling Properties as the data is helpful when reviewing the
properties.

Joseph Amundson

An appeal was submitted prior to the hearing by Joseph Amundson for a property located at
1101 28" Avenue South in Fargo. The application was not present at the meeting. Mr.
Fracassi said the applicant did not appeal the value at the City of Fargo Board of
Equalization meeting.

Hey Look a Squirrel Revocable Trust

An appeal was submitted prior to the hearing by Hey Look a Squirrel Revocable Trust for a
property located at 4355 66" Street South in Fargo. The applicant was not present at the
meeting. Mr. Fracassi said the applicant did not appeal the value at the City of Fargo Board
of Equalization meeting.

Enclave

An appeal was submitted prior to the hearing by Enclave for properties located at 4450 31st
Avenue South, 4476 315t Avenue South, 3171 44" Street South, 4500 36" Street South,
2633 55" Street South, 5600 28" Street South, 2451 43 Street North, and 2253 University
Drive South in Fargo. Mr. Fracassi said the applicant did not appeal the value at the City of
Fargo Board of Equalization meeting. Director of Finance at Enclave, Ryan Meyers, was
present via Microsoft Teams and said Enclave has 47 properties in Fargo and submitted
seven appeals for consideration. Mr. Meyers said increases in interest rates and expenses
are outpacing rental adjustments. He said actual investment costs are higher than assessed
value.

Holiday Gas Stations

An appeal was submitted prior to the hearing by Delta Property Tax Advisors on behalf of
Holiday Gas Stations for properties located at 1020 19" Avenue North, 3040 25" Street
South, 1902 24t Street South, 4377 45" Street South, 2755 Brandt Drive South, 1510 32"
Avenue South, 5651 36" Avenue South in Fargo and 1210 13" Avenue East and 2020
Sheyenne Street in West Fargo. The applicant was not present at the meeting.

Property Tax Resources

An appeal was submitted by Property Tax Resources for properties located at 51 North
Broadway and 300 NP Avenue in Fargo and 617 13" Street Northeast, 625 13" Street
Northeast, 1740 Main Avenue West, 474 10" Street Northeast, and 526 10" Street
Northeast in West Fargo. Mr. Fracassi said the applicant did not appeal the value at the City
of Fargo Board of Equalization meeting or City of West Fargo Board of Equalization
meeting. Property Tax Resources representative, Jennifer Carruth was present via Microsoft
Teams and said the presented properties are a mixture of office buildings and industrial
buildings. She said the buildings are experiencing vacancy rates and expenses are
outpacing income.

The following appellants reserved their right to appeal from the City of West Fargo.

PetSmart
An appeal was submitted by Pivotal Tax Solutions for a property located at 1630 13" Street
East in West Fargo. Representative of Pivotal Tax Solutions, Wayne Tannanbaum was



Commission Minutes—June 3, 2024 5866

present via Microsoft Teams and discussed comparable sales, and rental comparables to
support the requested value reduction.

Autism Center

Mr. Fracassi said the Autism Center reached out to submit an appeal to the Board of
Equalization. He said the Autism Center was denied a tax exemption due to a for profit
portion of the organization and would like to appeal the decision. He said after discussing
the issue with the State and North Dakota Century Code, the Board of Equalization at the
County and State level is not allowed to weigh in on tax exemptions. Mr. Fracassi said he
advised the Autism Center to go through the abatement process.

There were no additional appeals from cities.

Equalization of Townships
The following appellants reserved their right to appeal from Townships

Watson Township- Howard Rasmusson

An appeal was submitted by Howard Rasmusson for a property located at 5255 148"
Avenue Southeast in Leonard. Mr. Rasmusson was present in person and discussed his
concern with the increased value of his property. He said the home was built in 1980 out of
used lumber for $20,000. He said the value of his property jumped 49% from 2020 to 2021
and he made no changes to the property. He discussed the challenges with rural living such
as being far from grocery stores, not having paved roads, high utility costs, and only have
the option of dial up internet. Mr. Peterson said prior to 2020, there was no increase in
valuation for several years. He said the large increase in 2020 was due to this and had the
local assessor kept up with slowly increasing the value with the market, there would not
have been such a large increase in one year.

Quinten Gibson

An appeal was submitted in person at the meeting by Brett Kapaun, Watson Township local
assessor, for a property located at 5105 147 Avenue Southeast in Watson Township. Mr.
Kapaun said the property was previously farm exempt and is not worth 97,000. He said the
house on the property was going to be torn down and is not in good condition.

Brett Kapaun
An appeal was submitted in person at the meeting by Brett Kapaun for a property located at

4000 133 Avenue Southeast in Watson Township. Mr. Kapaun said he does not understand
the tier system used by the County to value rural properties. He said the tier system is not
equitable as properties that are located on a gravel road versus a paved road are valued the
same. He said he also does not understand how properties are determined as agriculture
land and exempt versus nonexempt.

Mr. Fracassi asked Mr. Kapaun if the request to the Board is to appeal the two properties
discussed today. Mr. Kapaun said that is correct. Mr. Fracassi said the tier system was
created with a model using sales allocations and other local data.

There were no additional appeals from townships.

Local Assessments




Commission Minutes—June 3, 2024 5867

Mr. Fracassi reviewed the minutes presented from the local boards of equalization and the
local assessors. He said the minutes were reviewed by the Cass County State’s Attorney’s
Office and the State and adequate action was not taken to make adjustments provided by
the local assessor. Mr. Fracassi said if the local assessors do not have their own cost
manual and the ability to model a system to create equitable values, they will be required to
use the county’s CAMA software to ensure equitable assessments.

MOTION, passed

Mr. Breitling moved and Mr. Grindberg seconded to move all pending

appeals present today into a pending status. On roll call vote, the motion

carried unanimously.

MOTION, passed

Mr. Kapitan moved and Mr. Breitling seconded to approve all other non-
pending approval status valuations. On roll call vote, the motion carried
unanimously.

The Cass County Board of Equalization was adjourned, the Board will reconvene on
June 17, 2024, at 3:30 PM in the Commission Room at the Cass County Courthouse.

ROAD, Cass Highway 14 Access Permit Option C approved

The Highway Department has been working with the City of Horace and the developer of Oak Valley
Subdivision to come to an agreement on the proposed access location along Cass Highway 14 west
of Cass Highway 17. The item was discussed by the Commission on April 15, 2024, and action was
tabled to allow time to find a suitable access solution. Since the April 15 meeting the Highway
Department, Developer, and City of Horace met with many adjacent landowners to discuss options.
County Engineer, Tom Soucy was present and said the recommendation from the Highway
Department is option C, where access is located 1,000 feet west of 73™ Street South. He said this
option is the best compromise and there is sufficient distance between major intersections.

Assistant County Engineer, Kyle Litchy was present and said option a was the recommended choice
in April and since then additional developers have come forward looking to develop in this area. He
said Horace is growing rapidly. He said due to the rapid development, the Highway Department has
added a project to the five-year road and bridge plan to add a center lane and expand the road.

Mrs. Scherling asked if a frontage road has been considered for this area to have fewer major
access points. Mr. Litchy said a frontage road adds road maintenance and takes away from road
right of way. He said the proposed plan and spacing is consistent with many major roads in Fargo
and West Fargo.

Nathan Sittleburg of Nyhus Law Firm, representing nearby landowner, the Naseth’s was present and
discussed that all three options do not follow county regulations and the access permit should not be
granted. He requested the Commission deny the permit. Mr. Soucy said the Highway Department
does not have issues with option ¢ and does not feel option ¢ is compromising any county
regulations. He said the area is developing faster than expected and the Highway Department is
reacting as developments are coming up.

Mr. Breitling asked if the City of Horace has acted on the proposed permit. County Administrator,
Robert Wilson was present and said he spoke with the City of Horace Administrator and Horace did
not take a formal opinion on any options, however, indicated general concurrence with the Highway
Department and option c. Community Development Director for the City of Horace was present and
said he met with the Highway Department and looked at numerous conceptual options and is fine
with option ¢ as long as current access or driveways are changed at this time.



10.

11.

Commission Minutes—June 3, 2024 5868

Shane Smith whose mother owns the land west of the Naseth’s property was present and said the
proposed plan does not follow the county’s guidelines and the county should not make exceptions.
He requested the county also take into account the access and parking to the cemetery near the
property.

Sharon Arnold, adjacent property owner, was present and said the County should purchase the
Naseth property and does not feel the Holman property should be separated. She said she favors
option b.

Kathy Holman, adjacent property owner, was present and said the farm on the property has been in
the family since the 1800s. She said the driveway was established in 1940 and she would like a
statement in writing that the Holman driveway would not be compromised in the future. She said the
Holman’s are not looking to sell the farm, however, do not want to compromise future opportunities.
Mr. Peterson said the driveway will not be changed unless the Holman’s, as the property owners,
decide to sell or change the use of the property.

Director of Eagle Ridge, “the Developer”, Jonathan Youness was present and said Eagle Ridge is in
favor of option c as it is the best solution and impacts the least amount of people. Mr. Youness said
this is step one in the process, the City of Horace has not weighed in because the development
plans have not been submitted as a signature for the access permit is required from the County first.
MOTION, passed
Mr. Grindberg moved and Mr. Kapitan seconded to authorize the County
Engineer to sign the Cass Highway 14 access permit for the Oak Valley Plat at
the proposed option ¢ location. On roll call vote, the motion carried with Mr.
Kapitan, Mr. Grindberg, Mr. Peterson, and Mrs. Scherling voting “yes” and Mr.
Breitling voting “no”.

FARGO CASS PUBLIC HEALTH, Updated agreement approved

Mr. Wilson said Fargo Cass Public Health (FCPH) has proposed updating its service agreement to
better reflect services FCPH provides and after jail nursing services are transitioned from FCPH
employment to County employment. He said in 2016, West Fargo ended its financial support of
FCPH in lieu of North Dakota Century Code interpretation and the City of Fargo and Cass County
absorbed the costs. Mr. Wilson said FCPH indicated FCPH will no longer fund the West Fargo
services and the costs will be billed to the County. He said the County is free to enter into a separate
agreement with West Fargo to recoup all or a portion of the expenses.

Director of Public Health at FCPH, Desi Fleming, was present and said the West Fargo piece is not
written into the agreement. She said the main update to the agreement is the removal of the jail
nursing staff from FCPH and accurately reflecting services provided by FCPH.

MOTION, passed

Mr. Grindberg moved and Mr. Breitling seconded to authorize the chair to sign

the Agreement for Provision of Health Services for Cass County by Fargo Cass

Public Health. On roll call vote, the motion carried unanimously.

JAIL, Budget adjustment for jail nursing services approved

Cass County has been working with the City of Fargo to transition jail nursing staff from the City of
Fargo through FCPH to Cass County. Mr. Wilson said the transition is scheduled to formally occur
on July 2, 2024. He said the request today is to authorize a budget adjustment in the amount of
$69,774 to the Sheriff's Office budget to accommodate for the transition.

Ms. Fleming said FCPH and County staff are working together to make the transition smooth and
ensure jail nurse staff have equal benefits. Mrs. Scherling asked if the benefits are similar. Mr.
Peterson said Cass County’s benefits are better.



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Commission Minutes—June 3, 2024 5869

MOTION, passed

Mr. Breitling moved and Mr. Kapitan seconded to approve a budget adjustment
in the 2025 Sheriff’s Office budget increasing the jail nursing line item by
$69,774. On roll call vote, the motion carried unanimously.

SHERIFF, Purchase of mobile command vehicle approved
County Sheriff Jahner is requesting to purchase a mobile command vehicle from Casselton Fire
Department. The item was tabled at the June 3, 2024, Commission meeting.
MOTION, passed
Mr. Grindberg moved and Mr. Kapitan seconded to approve the purchase,
including uplift, and a budget adjustment of a mobile incident command vehicle
from Casselton Fire Department in the amount of $64,633.00 using the county’s
(Local Assistance and Tribal Consistency Fund) LACTCF funding. On roll call
vote, the motion carried unanimously.

BREAK
The commission took a break at 6:19 PM and reconvened at 6:24 PM.

RED RIVER REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER, Constructions bids approved

On May 8, 2024, bids were opened for general contractor, electrical contractor, and mechanical
contractor services for construction of the Red River Regional Dispatch Center (RRRDC). The
RRRDC Authority Board approved the recommended bids as follows: general contractor,
Ledgestone, Inc. with a bid of $5,492,000, mechanical contractor, Robert Gibb and Sons with a bid
of $2,214,385, and electrical contractor, Grotberg Electric, Inc. with a bid of $2,398,000. Mr. Wilson
said once the low bids are approved, there will be a request to approve the contracts on June 17,
2024.

MOTION, passed

Mr. Grindberg moved and Mr. Kapitan seconded to approve successful bidders:
general contractor, Ledgestone, Inc. with a bid of $5,492,000, mechanical
contractor, Robert Gibb and Sons with a bid of $2,214,385, and electrical
contractor, Grotberg Electric, Inc. with a bid of $2,398,000 for the RRRDC
construction bids. On roll call vote, the motion carried unanimously.

RED RIVER REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER, Director authorized as county agent
Mr. Wilson said June 5, 2023, in accordance with the RRRDC Joint Powers Agreement (JPA), the
County Commission approved an Owner-Architect Agreement with SEH for design and construction
management of the new dispatch center facility. He said section 5.3 of the JPA specifies that an
owner’s representative shall be authorized to act on the owner’s behalf and the agreement with SEH
references former RRRDC Director Mary Phillippi. Mr. Wilson said the request today is to authorize
current RRRDC Director Amanda Glasoe to act as Agent of Cass County in matters related to the
design and construction of the new RRRDC facility.

MOTION, passed

Mr. Breitling moved and Mr. Kapitan seconded to authorize RRRDC Director

Amanda Glasoe to act as Agent of Cass County in matters related to the design

and construction of the RRRDC facility. On roll call vote, the motion carried

unanimously.

BUILDINGS, Space utilization discussion

Over the past year, the Commission and Building Committee have been planning for an additional
secure courtroom in the current Information Technology (IT) office space. Mr. Wilson said for
Commission discussion today is two options to move forward. Option one to renovate the unutilized
secure juvenile detention area on the first floor of the Annex into an area that will accommodate
current and future IT needs. Mr. Wilson said the benefit of this option is it would be the quickest and
most cost-efficient approach. Option two would be to identify the best layout for the Annex and move




17.

18.

19.

Commission Minutes—June 3, 2024 5870

IT and the State’s Attorney offices to the Annex second and third floors, directing Human Service
Zone divisions with the most walk-in traffic to the first floor of the Annex. Mr. Wilson said this option
frees up space in the Courthouse for the County to approach the State Legislature with the potential
to collaborate on future courtroom planning and funding and allows the County to review future
needs of other departments to plan for growth and efficiencies in space. He said challenges with the
option include cost, complexity, and length of time to plan and implement.

Mr. Grindberg said since the last Commission action to table discussion on space utilization in early
2024, he has reviewed the space in the Courthouse and Annex which gave him a different
perspective and understanding of the situation. He said the County pays approximately $60,000 per
year on court operating expenses and the County needs to use space and taxpayer dollars wisely.
Mr. Peterson said the Commission needs to decide whether to think long term or short term. County
IT Director, Bob Henderson was present and said he is not overly pleased to wait long term for a
long-term IT office space to be completed, however, IT is ready to do what is best for the County.
Mr. Grindberg said the County needs to do the right thing for IT and consideres a years’ time to be
temporary.

Mrs. Scherling said she favors looking holistically at the County’s space utilization. Mr. Breitling said
he would like to see cost projections for both options before making a decision. Mr. Kapitan said he
would also like to see cost projections. Mr. Grindberg said a rough estimate is that option one would
be about $400,000 and option two would be about $2 million. Mr. Wilson said he will go back to TL
Stroh to get a cost projection for both options and a master plan to get portions of the project done
before legislative action.

COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT, 2.5% approved for budgeting purposes

Mr. Wilson said on May 29, 2024, County Department Heads recommended a cost of living
adjustment (COLA) of 2.5% for County employees in 2025. He said the County has a long-standing
practice of Department Heads making a COLA recommendation for the following budget year based
on the Midwest size B/C® April to April consumer price index (CPI). Mr. Wilson said during the
Department Head discussion, Mr. Fracassi shared with the group that he was curious about the
figure the County has traditionally used and contacted the Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) and
connected with an economist that recommended the county would fall better into the Midwest West
North Central category rather that the Midwest B/C3. Mr. Wilson said at this time, the Department
Heads recommended staying with traditional practice and in the future consider looking into which
figure is best suited for Cass County.

County Finance Director, Brandy Madrigga was present and said the West North Central category
was added in 2017. She said when looking at the average of the CPI over the last several years,
there would be no difference in the percentage of COLA. She said the County can look to change
the practice in the future if desired.
MOTION, passed
Mr. Breitling moved and Mr. Kapitan seconded to adopt a 2.5% COLA for use in
developing the 2025 Cass County budget. On roll call vote, the motion carried
unanimously.

VOUCHERS, Approved
MOTION, passed
Mr. Grindberg moved and Mrs. Scherling seconded to approve Voucher No.
242822 through Voucher No. 343237 for a total of $1,963,101.84. On roll call
vote, the motion carried unanimously.

MEETING UPDATES, Committee reports
Commissioners and staff reported on meetings they have attended or will be attending in the
upcoming weeks.




20.

Commission Minutes—June 3, 2024

ADJOURNMENT
MOTION, passed
On motion by Mr. Grindberg, seconded by Mrs. Scherling and all in favor, the
meeting was adjourned at 7:04 PM.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Brandy Madrigga, County Finance Director Chad M. Peterson, Chairman

Cass County, North Dakota Cass County Board of Commissioners

5871



